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you could make. The direct evidence is what? What you saw. The

- moisture on the pavement. You didn't have to infer. You saw wet

pavement in his example, didn’'t you? The direct evidence is what?

what you heard on the rooftop, and you. heard scmething there that

sounded like water, isn't that true? That is what you heard. That

is direct evidence. What you saw. That is direct evidence. Some-
times a moist rain in the fall of the year or the spring has a
certain asroma about it. He didn't put that in the example, but
sometimes you can smeil a fresh rain. Anyway, what other inferences
could you make? Well, let's go with his example, as far as it went,
and we get outside after hearing what we think is water on the réof,
and it is, and we see the wet patio, and we assume it rained. 1Is
there any other 1nference we could make by the Prosecutor’s own
example? Suppcse we lﬁok'next door to our neighbor, Mr. Brown, OX
Mr. Smith, and his dog is out in the back yard and he has got a big
dog, and the dog is nipping at him,vplaying at him, jumping up and
down on him, and he is holding a hose in his hand. You know what a
hose is, don't you? Water comes out of a hose. It is obwious as
you look at Mr. Brown, who is playing with his dog, that his hose
has gone from the direction of wheres he was sprinkling to the top of
your house. What jinference can you make from that? Would you still
think 1t rained? Anybedy? You can't get out of your mind hearing

water on the roof, but here is Mr. Brown's hose. That is consistent

with what you heard, isn't 1t?

MR. HEAD: Your Honor, we are going o object only as to

i

|
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the fact Defense counsel has not used all the facts I used in my
circumstantial statement.

THE COURT: I think counsel can expand.on the example.
I assume it is éoing to be tied into some questidn as far as voir dire.

MR. BOSTICK: ©Oh, yes. I would hope so. Thank you very
much. So, befo?e I was ihterrupted, we have got the hose in Mr.
Brown's hand. It comes back to your mind you heard water on the
roof. .I think he said you look down and your pavement is wet. That
is consistent with what? Not that it rained, but you can infer that
the water came on the roof from what_you heard and saw on the patio
from Mr. Brown's hose. Isn't that true?

Now, when.the information is read to you with respect to circum-
stantial evidence, will you take into consideration all that you heas
in the way of that ina£ruction? will you all do that?

Do you know that you are not allowed to infer from an inference
but you must infer or may infer an inference from a fact? Do you
understand that? It is improper to base an inference on an inference.
I think you also were told that if the circumstances create inferences
that are equally consistent with either innccence or guilg, such
inference must be resolved in favor of the accused's innocence. Does
anybody have a problem with that? You can infer guilt or infer |
innocence. Where you are faced with that choice, what musﬁ vou do?

You must pick the innocence. Do you understand that? That makes

sense, doesn't it? You went outside and saw Brown holding the hose

that obviocusly sprayed the water on the roof and made the sound and

SR i, S ——— N & 4 e e e s e




Voir Dire 238

provided the moisture.
At this stage of the voir dire, I usually ask the question, and
I see no reason why I shouldn't now, based upon all that you have
heard and seen, is there any reason at all that each of you cannot
render a fair and impartial decision based upon the evidence? Any-
body?. Is there any one of you who would not be satisfied with a
juror with your same frame of mind as you sit there now? Did you
hear the question? Do you understand it? Anybody that didn't under-
stand that question? I assume that each and every one of you would
be satisfied with a juror with the same frame of mind., 1Is that true?
Thank you, Your Honor. We pass for cause.

THE"COURT: Thank you, Mr. Bostick. Would counsel
approach the bénch, ﬁlease. |

(Whereupon the following was had at the benchz)

THE‘COURTQ If you are prepared, Qé can go forward. If
not, I will giQa you a few minutes if you would like and then we can
go right into the peremptory thing and get the jury. My basic
question is would your schedules permit us going on the view this
afternoon? Do you think two alternates is sufficient?

MR. LANGER: Yes.

MR;-STEPHAN: How late is the view?

&HE'COURT: Anytime.

MR. STEPHAN: Do you have a docket call?

THE COURT: I do.

{Whereupon an off-the-record discussion was had.)
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(Whereupon counsel returned to their respective tables.)

THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, we have concluded the
voir dire procéés, thé examination of the prospective jurors. There
are Qoing to be what are referred to in the law as peremptory chal-
lenges. These are excuses that counsel would make directed toward
any particular juror for reasons that do not need to be disclosed as
far as the record is concerned or have no particular legal basis
connected with them, but they are provided in the law, and we are
going to take a brief recess while cqunéel decide which, if any, of
those peremptory challenges to exercise in this case. I would say
before we do recess that if any of you are excused peremptorily. you
should@ not in any way consider that as any personal acticn taken
against you. It is merely counsel's opinion that you may be more
suitable as a juror in'some other kind of a case other than this one
based on the examination that they made, and I know counsel appre-
ciate your very attentive behavior and responses to their questions
in the voir dire examination. So, with that explanation, ws will
take a 10- or 15-minute recess and ask that you all then return to
ﬁhe courtrocm at that time.

{Whereupon a recess was had.)

(Wﬂereupon court reconvened.)

THEYCOURT} Very well. Is counsel ready to proceed?

MR.‘HEAD{ We are, Your Honor.

MR. BOSTICK: We are, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Any persmptory challenge for the State o
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Ohio?

MR. HEAD: Thank you, Your HONOr. with our thanks, we
will excuse Juror No. 7, Mr. Morrow. |

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Morrow, you are excused.
Thank you very-ﬁuch for attending these proceedings. We appreciate
your efforts as a citizen.

THE BAILIFF: Doris Haines, please, Seat No. 7.

' THE.COURT: Very well. Any peremptory challenge for

Defense? - |

MR. BOSTICK: If it please the Court, we would ask the
Court to excuse Ms. Holtzman.

THE COURT: Ms. Holtzman, you are excused with the thanks
of the Court.

TEE BAILIFf: Wesley Ward, please.

THE COURT: The next peremptory challenge for the State
of Ohio?

MR. HEAD: Thank you, Your Honor. With our thanks, we

will excuse Ms. Harris.

THE COURT: Ms. Harris, you are excused. Thank you for
participating.
THE BAILIFF: Sherry Neumaier, please.

THE COURT: The next peremptory challenge for Defense?

MR. BOSTICK: May we approach the bench?

THE COURT: Certainly. ‘
‘ 1
(Whersupon the following was had at tha bench:) |
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MR. BOSTICK: Your Honor, based upon the questioning of
Mr. Ward by botﬁ the Progsecution and Defense, we would move that he
be dismissed for cause.

MR . HEAD:V vour Horor, we feel that the prospective
juror, Mr. Ward; has énsyered all the éuestions satisféctorily. He
indicéted to the Court and counsel that he could be 2 fair and
impartial juror. |

THE COURT: The Court sympathizes with the Defendant's
motion in this ﬁatter; put the juror has made the appropriate
responses and the Court feels that it is without adequate juétifi-
cation to excuse the juror for cause. The request is overruled.

{Wheresupon counsél returnéd to their respective tables.)

MR, STEPHAN: If}it please the Court, Defense would ask
that Mr. Ward be excﬁéed.

THE COURT: Very well, Mr. Ward, you are exqused, sir.
Thank you very ﬁuch fér participating in these proceedings.

THE BATLIFF: James CGriffith, please.

THE COURT: The next nersmptory challenge for the State
of Ohio?

MR. HEAD: Thank you, Your Honor. with our thanks, we
would ask the Court to excuse Ms. Barbee.

THE COURT: Ms. Barbee, you are excused. Thank you very
much for participating.

THE BAILIFF: Wwilliam Morris, pleése.

THE COURT: The next peremptory challenge for Defanse?

i
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MR. STEPHAN: Could wg have a moment, Your Honor?

THE COURT: You may.

MR, STEPHAN:“ With the Court's indulgeﬁce, we would ask
that‘Mr. William Morris be dismissed and excused.

THE COURT: Mr. Morris, you are ex;used. Thank you very
much for partiéipatiné.

THE BAILIFF: John Bloomstrom, please.

THE COURT: The next peremptory challenge for the State
of Ohio?

MR. HEAD: One moment, Your Honor.

THE CCURT: Very well.

MR. HEAD: Your Honor, with our thanks, we would ask the
Court to excuse Ms. Brown, Juror No. 9.

THE COURT:' Ms. Brown, you are excused. Thank you very
much for participating.

THE BAILIFF: Carolyn Sue Basford, pleass.

THE COURT: The next peremptory challenge for Defense,

rlease?

MR. STEPHAN: Your Honor, Defense is well-satisfied with

" the jury as it is presently constituted.

THEE COURT: You pass?

MR. STEPHAN: Yes,

THE COURT: Thank you. That concludes the peremptory
challenges of ihe parties in this matter. Mr.lFindlay, would you

call -- I think we better have two alternates in this case.
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MR. BOSTICK: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Would you call the one remaining lady and
the next name or two on the list?

THE BAILIFF: Marie Ball and Carl Tobe, please.

THE COURT: Ms. Ball, would you take the seat right up
here, please, néxt to Mr..Bloomstrom. We haven't addressed you
personally. Yocur nane is what?

MR, TOBE: Carl Tobe.

THE'COURT: Mr. Tobe, have'you heard all the questions
that have been ?ropounded to the members of the regular panel by
both the Court and by counsel?

MR, TOBE: Yes, I have.

THE COURT: Have you made mental notes as to what your
answers to all those questions would have been?

MR. TOBE: i believe s0.

TH? COUR?: It would be quite a list, probably. The
Court would ask you if your answer to any of the guestions pro-
pounded would have varied in any material respect with the question
propounded to any of the other jurors and the answver given by them.

MR, TOBE: ©No, sir.

THE COURT: You sgree basically with averything that has
been said in the courtroom?

MR. TOBE: Right.

THE COURT: Do you know of any reason why you could not

act as a fair and impartial juror in this case?

AATETE AT COAON PTFAS » MONTGOMERY (OUNTS, £l
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-for you, sir, I would explain to you that the role of the alternate

juror is a bit different than the role of a member of the regular

MR. TOBE: No, sir.

A

THE COURT: All right. For both of you, for Ms. Ball an

panel. An alternate juror has to work just as hard at the case as
a member of the reqular panel, but if no misfortune befalls any of
the members of the reguiar panel, then the alternate will not be
called upon to deliberate and render a verdict. That does not
alleviate the alternate from the obligation of paying extremely
close attention, just as a iegular member of the panel, to a2ll the
evidence presented in the case. 'Do’both of you feel that you could
€ulfill that role in this case?

MS. BALL: Yss, sir.

MR.>TOBE:' Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Very weii. Normally, we would select only
one alternate but since the trisl iz expected to take a couple weeks)
we are going to have baﬁh of you. I think we could probably make a
seating arrangement that is more comfortable than where you are
right now. Are you both able tc hear 2ll right from where you'are?

MS. BALL: Yes, sir.

MR, TOBE: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Good sncugh. Does counsel waive voir dire
on Mr. Tobe?

MR, HEAD: Your Homor, I have a couple gquestions I'd

1ike o ask.
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THE COURT: All right. Counsel?

MR. BOSTICK: Likewise, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Call another two names, please.

THE BAILIFF: Elizabeth Jump, please. Alan Weaver, plea
Is Elizabeth Jump in ihg courtroom? |

THE COURT: Call the next name.

THE BAILI?F: It will be then Mr, Weaver and Catherine
Xalman,

THE COURT: Let me ask the same series of questions I
did of the other two individuals, Have you heard all of“the'questioi
propounded by the Court andAcounsel in this matter?

MR, WEAVER: Yes, sir.

MS, KALMAN: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Have you made mental notes as to what your
responses to those gquestions would have been?

MR. WEAVER: Yes, sir,

MS, KALMAN: Yes, sir.

THE COURT? How about those responses then; would they
have varied in any material respect from those of the other members
of the panel?

MR. WEAVER: Nao.

MS. KALMAN: There are so many I don't know if I recall
all of them.

THE COURT: I deon't remember them either. I was hoping

¢hat you did, Did you understand the role of the alternate juror in

emmt enw wmam MELmera L. me=ivnd /v e mUEPRT A 4T
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a case like this?

MS. KALMAN: Yes.

THE COURT: 1Is it scmething you think fou could do?

MS. KALMAN: Would we also be an alternate?

THE COURT: I don't know yet,

MS..KALMAN= .I mean sit in on all the things?

THE COURT: Any problem with that?

MS., KALMAN: No.

THE COURT: Would you be a fair and impartial juror 4if
you were called upon to serve as a regular member.of the panel?

MS. KALMAN: Yes.

THE.COURT: For you four people, I want you to stay for
a minute. For the rest of you, I am going to excuse you £rom any
further jury service iﬁ this case. I want to take this opportunity
to thank you perzonally on behalf of the Court and on behalf of
counsel Zfor participating over these two days of voir dire examina-
tion. I hope you do not feel because you were not selected as jurors
in this case that your time has been wasted in this procedure. If
it were not for citizens like you who would take the time out of
their daily lives to come down here and to offer to serve and par-
ticipate in these Vvoir dire examinations, we could not operate the
system of justice that we operate here in Montgomery County, and I

can tell you from direct personal experience in almost every other

major metropolitan jurisdiction in Ohio that Montgomery County has

by far the best system of justice in the State of Chio, and it is !
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due in direct measure to citizens like yourselves. You have this
Court's sincere thanks and gratitude for your service. You are now
excused from any further service, and you may leave the cocurtroom.
I, £rankly, would ask that you adhere as best you can to the Court's
admonition to you and the instructions‘that you have been under for
the last two days because this case does have socme public notoriety
associated with it, and it is possible that some of you could be
contacted by members of'the news media to share your impressions
with them., Frankly, until the case is over with, I'd just as scon
you didn't do that. But, you are free to follow your own cqns§ience
in that regard. It may be that the case has generated enocugh intereﬁ_
in your own mind to follow it in the media, arnd you are free to do
that at this point in time. .ﬁith the thanks of the Court, then, the‘
rest of you in the back are excused.

Very well. Ladies and gentlemen, we are going to delay you a
little bit more while we select the two alternates who will serve in
this casze. I also want to advise you of what the forthcoming
schedule ig. After we select the two alternates and vou take your
oath as jurors in this case, Mr. Findlay will orient you 211 to the
jury room facility, which will be at least your daytime home for the
next approximately two weeks. There are soma badges that we ask
that our jurors wear on the £ifth floor because the CGrand Jury is in
session, and this is not exactly a private hallway.v There are other

people that use the hallway, so we want to ma%e sure that you are

properly identified as jurors in the case to maks it easy for othey
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people to follow the Court;s instructions as far as not discussing
anything with you. Mr. Findlay will tell you all the rules that we
have that are peculiar to this particular floor ané this particular
courtroom and how it is set up after we break., You will then be
}given a lengthy break becauee the Court has other business that is
set for 1:30 and that will continue on for some peried of time this
afterﬁoon. But, we are going to have you back in the courtroom. We
will ask that you come back because you are going to be taken on a
view of some locations that are pertinent in the case, That will
occur at approximately 3:45 or 4:00 o'clock this afternoon and will
not take long, probably a half hour to 45 minutes at the most. Then)
you will be brought back to the Courthouse and released for the day.
On Wednesday, that is tomorrow, we will ask that you report to the
jury roem by 2:00 o'ciock in the mornihg when we will have opening
statements by counsel. We will then havg a recess, again, because
of other cases that have been previocusly calendared for 10:00 until
1;00 o'clock. At 1:00 o'cleck, we will commence with the presen-
tation of evidence in the case on Wednesday. That gives you a little
bit of a scheduling outline for you to follow. If that seems a
l1ittle choppy in this procedure, and this procedurs has seemed
choppy up to you now, that is because it is because we don't just
have one case. We hava to handle other cases that are assigned and
.require the Court's attention and counsel's atteution, also.

You said you had scme additional guestions, Mr., Head, You

may proceed.
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MR, HEAD: Thank you, Your Honér. ¥Mr. Tobe, you heard
what the State of'Ohio‘s burden of precof is in this case, 4id you not?

MR, TOBE: Yes.

MR. HEAD: Any problem with that concegt?

MR; TOBE: ‘No.

MR, HEAD: Did you hear Mr. Bostick describe that as an

MR, TOBE: Yes.

MR., HEAD: You understand that is his definition of it?

MR. TOBE: Right.

MR., HEAD: Not necessarily what other people think.

MR. TOBE: Right.

MR._HEADQ Did you hear my example of circumstantial
evidence?

MR. TCBE: Right,

MR, HEAD: Did you hear Mr. Bostick's alternative theoryp

MR. TOBE: Right.

MR, HEAD: Did you notice that Mr, Bostick didn’t indi-
. cate to you that there was wetness all over the street, in the grass,
as well as the patio area? ,

MR. TOBE: Yes.

MR. HEAD: And zlso there was the sound of thunder?

MR. TOBE: Right.

MR. HEAD: Do you have any problems with circumstantial

evidence?
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‘MR. TOBE: No, sir.

MR. HEAD: Do you understand that one can be convicted
sclely on circuﬁstantiél evidence?

MR, TOBE: Right.

MR..HEAD: The fact that we don’'t have an eyewltness to
the case who will be testifying in the case, does that disturb you
at allz?

MR. TOBE: No, sir,

MR.”HEAD=H T will ask Alan Weaver, is that right?

MR, WEAVER: Yes, sir.

MRa-HEAnz Without asking the same gquestions, would your
answers be the same as Mr. Tobe's?

MR, WEAVER: Yes, they would.

MR HEADt"‘Are you Catherine Kalman?

MS. KALMAN: Yes.

MR. HEAD: I will ask you the same question. Wwould your
ansvers be any diffesrent than Mr. Tobe's?

M3, KALMAN: DNo.

MR, HEAD: If you are chosen to serve as an alternate
juror, you can listeﬁ to all the evidence even though there is 2
good chance you won't be able to deliberate the case?

MS. KAIMAN: Yes, I can.

MR, HEAD: Very weli. Thank you very much., Pass for

cRUSS.

THZ COURT: Thank you. Mr. Bostick?
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MR,
ask some of the
MR,

MR.

How long have you lived in sur County?

MR.

tusiness?

MR .

TOBE: Two and a half years.

BOSTICKX: Did you hire other people in your own

BOSTICK: Yes, Your Honor, Mr. Tobe, you heard me
other jurocrs about their spare time?
TOBE: Right.

BOSTICK: Let me do that with you, is that all right?

TOBE: Twenty-seven years.
BOSTICK: And befors then?
TOBE? Mercer.

BOSTICK: Beg pardon?
TOBEz. Mercer County.

BOSTICK: You have been with Deleco how long, sirc?

BOSTICK: And bafore then?
TOBE: In my own business.
BOSTICK: May I ask what your business was?

TOBE: Sales; Machine Services, Inc.

TOBE: Right.

BOSTICK: How many employees did you have?
TOBE: A maximum of 27.

BOSTICK: Twenty-seven?

TOBE: Right.

BOSTICK: Your son is a student where, siz?

TCBE: Chaminade-~Julienne.
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MR. BdSTICK: Is Mrs. Tobe a housewife?
MR. TOBE: A housewife.
MR. BOSTICK: What do you do in your séare time, if you
have any?
MR, TOBE: Fishing, if I get a chance.
MR, éOSTICK: Do you belong to any organizations or clubsg?
MR, TOBE: No.
MR, Mr. Weaver, you have lived in the County

about all of your life, have you?

employer?

long now?

MR. WEAVER: Yes, sir.

MR.'

MR

MR

BOSTICK:

BOSTICK:

WEAVER:

BOSTICK:.

WEAVER:

BOSTICK:

WEAVER:

BOSTICK:

WEAVER 3

BOSTICK:

WEAVER 2

stocks and bonds,

MR,

MR.

BOSTICK:

WEAVER:

How long have you been with your present

About a3 year and a half.
And before then?

A book store.

You and yvour wife have a small baby, do you?
Right.

Your wife has been with Wintefs~8&nk how

Approximately three years.
About three years. What does she do there?

She works in the department that handles

Your spare-time activities are what, sir?

Watching television and Zixing the housa up?
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MR,

MR

MS.

MR,

impartial juror

MS,.

MR,

MS.

and taking care cf the baby.

BOSTICK:

vigion programs?

WEAVER:

BOSTICK:

KALMAN:

BOSTICK:

years, have you?

KALMAN:
BOSTICK:
KALMAN:
BOSTICK:
KALMAN:

BOSTICK:

reason at all you couldn®t sit on this jury and be a fair and

4

TOBE: Not that I know of.

WEAVER:

KALMAN:

BOSTICK:

of not guilty 4if the evidence =o showed?

KATMAN:

BOSTICK:

thing, does that turn you off with respect to receiving evidence,

being fair and impartial?

Do you have a special preference of tele-

Oh, something light and comedy.
I am with you. Ms, Xalman?

Yes.

You have lived in the County a number of

Yes.

And before then?

Mercer County.

Did you know the gentleman over there?
No..

Let me ask you three people is thers any

Hoe.

No.

You wouldn’t hesitate to return a verdict

Right. |

The nature of this terrible, terrible
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MR. TOBE: No, I wouldn't say it would.

MR. BOSTICK: You haven't made any judgment calls, have
you?

MR. TCBE: No.

MR. BOSTICX: Let me ask you this. You heard the
questions as we went thfcugh +hem. You probably won't remember them

all. I wouldn't, either. But, the point I want to ask you is did

[

anything stick out in your mind that you should call to our attentios:

at this timé?

MR, TOBE: The oniy thing I know is no more than did 1
walk in the house lasﬁ night and my wife says, you've got such and
‘such a case. It was in the paper. She read it.

MR. BOSTICK: But you didn’'t?

MR. TOBE: NO.

MR. BOSTICKX: Let me ask you this. Any reason at all you

couldn't sit as a fair and impartial juror? You said no, all three

[44]

of you. Would all three of you be satisfied with jurors of your sam
frame of mind? Did you understand the queastion?

MS. KALMAN: I domn't think I did.

¥R, BOSTICK: Taking your frame of mind right now, your
attitude, would you be satisfied with a juror with the same frame of
mind?

MS. KALMAN: Yes.

MR, BOSTICK: Would you be satisfied?

MR, WEAVER: Yes.

COURT OF COMMON PLTAT » MONTCOMERY COUNTDY OHIG
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- you as to how you are to conduct yourselves while you are visiting

MR, TOBE: Yes.

MR. BOSTICk: Pass for caﬁse. Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you. Any peremptory challenge for the
State of Ohio?

MR, HEAD: We will pass peremptqrily.

THE COURT: Defense?

MR, STEPHAN: Your Honor, we pasé. We are satisfied,

THE COURT: We didn't delay you too long. Ms. XKalman
and Mr. weaver,'you are going-fo now be éxcused, along with the othesr
pecple that left the courtroom, for the balance of the trial with
the same admeonition that I gave the other pecple and also with the
samé‘degree of thanks that I gave the other people for your partici-
pation in this process. Thank you very much, Mr, Findlay, would
you give the oath to the prospective jurors?

{Whereupon the jury.was 8WOrn. )

THE_COURT: The last thing I am going to say to you, well,
two things because I will not probably be addressing you the balance
of the day even though you have some other duties to attend to, is
to give you your recess admonition which, by the and of the two wesks,

you will have memorized better than I, I am sure, and alsc to advise

the locaticns this afternoon that you will be taken to. I will do
that part first,.

This afternoon, you are going to be taken to some locations

that are involved in this case. You will remain together under the |
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gupervision of the Bailiff of this court, Mr. Findlay, until you are
returned to the Courthouse and relessed by him this afternoon.
Counsel and the parties in this case may aécompany you on the view,
but they may not discuss this case or demonstrate anything relating
to it to you. Only the Bailiff may céll your attention to certain
objects or areas that are reguested of him by counsel. What you
observe on these locations and a2t the zcene is not evidence. The
conditions may have changed since the time of the events in this caze.
The evidence as to the physical appearance of the scene must come to
you from testimony from the witness stand or through the Exhibits

which are adm;tted. The sole purpose of this view of these location:

L U

is to help vou understand the evidence as it is presented to you
during the trial.

with those instructions, I am going to give you the recess
admonition once more, and then you can go and get lunch. Do not
discuss this case among yourselves or with anyone else., Do not
permit anyone to discuss this case with you ér to discuss it in your
presence., Do not form or express any opinibn on this case until it
i finally submitted to you. You may explain this rule to any of
your family or your friends. When your jury service is completed,
vou will be released from this instruction. At that time, you may
discuss the case and your experiences as a juror, but, of course,
you are not reguired to do so. Until that moment, you must control
any desire that you have to discuss this case both here and outside

the courtroom. Do not talk with the attorneys, the parties, or the
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witnesses during the trial of this case. Likewise, these individual:
should not talk with you., If anyone should attempt to discuss this
case with you, report the incident to the Court through Mr. Findlay
or Mrs. Maynard at your earliest opportgnity. Do not investigate or
attempt to obtain any additional information sbout this case outside
the coﬁrtroom. As I have told you before and I will remind you again,
it is quite likely this case will be the subject of news broadcasts
or of news writings in the newspapers, and I instruct you that you
are not to read, view, or listen to any accounts in the newspaper,
radio, or television-on the subject of this trial. Further, do not
let anyone read to you or even comment to ycu about any suéh news
accounts. If you should acquire any information through this means,
please report that to Mr, Findlay or Mrs. Maynard as scon as practical,
and that will be dealt with then subsequently by the Court. If any
persQnal problems arise, utilize the same procedure.
with that explanation, then, is there anything further by
counsel?
MR, BEAD: Not on the part of the State, Judge. Thank ycﬁ.
MR. BOSTICK: No, Your Honor. Thank you.
THE COURT: I am going to release you into the custody of
Mr. Findlay and ask that you report back to your jury room at 4:00 p,m.
(Wwhereupon a recess was had.)
July 21, 1982

{Whereupon the following was had in chambers:) !

i

THE COURT: The racord should indicats we are in chambers,
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. throughout the proceedings, just as it would be fair to inquire of

any witness as to whether or not other parties may have been suspects

the Defendant's presence having been waived by counsel.

MR. STEPHAN: So waived.

THE.COURT: For the purpcse of discussion on the motion
previocusly madehby thé State of Ohioc inilimine in reference to a
juvenile by the name of Michael Johnson who has beén;charged
similafly to the Defendant iﬁ this case but in JUVenile Court, said
charges beihg pending at the present time, the motion being directed
toward prohibiting any line of inquiry or examination or offer of
proof in relation to the fact that said juvenile is chargéd and said
charges are pending in Juvenile Court., 1Is that a fair statemeﬁt?

MR. LANGER: Or considered a suspect by the police or
the Prcsecution;

THE COURT: Does counszel wish to address this matter?

MR;VSTEPﬁAS; Judge, our pesition is that we feel that

i1¢ is fair to comment on Michael Johnson's status as a suspect

at one time or another. We feel handcuffed by a motion that would
prevent us from stating whether or not he is a suspect.

MR. LANGER: If I might respond. Certainly, the Defense
can present evidence from which they can argue in closing that he
should also be considered by the jury to be a suspect in this case,
but the belief of the police or the 3tate that Michael Johnéon is a

suspect is identical on the fact that charges were filed against himl

our belief is not svidence, and the fact that charges have been filed
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is not evidence, evidence of Johnson's guilt or evidence of this
Defendant's innocence.

THE COURT: That is true.

MR.<STEPHAN: Once again, I am not arguing with the
Prosecution tha§ the évidenca of his arrest and detaining him in
Juvenile Court should nét be commented on in this trial, but I don't
Xnow that Defense should be restricted any further Ehan that.

MR. BOSTICK: For the record, we do feel such a restric-

tion, to implement what fellow counsel has said, would deny the

Defendant of a fair trial and would deny him himself of the effective

use of counsel as provided by the Constitution.

MR. STEDHAN: ivbelieve, Judge, that %the motion of the
Prosecutor as fs how far we are to be limited may be premature. We
don't know what the evidence will be. We don’t know what questiohs
we are going to ask. ﬁe don't know the status as a suspect Michael
Johnson might be. To contain us at this point may deny our client a
fair trial.

THE COURT: Well, the Court kind of agrees with Mr.
Stephan's comment to the effect that I don't know the context in
which this evidence i3 going to arise at this point, whether there
would be something presented by the State in chief or on direct,
being subject to cross examination. Not knowing sxactly how any of

this issue would arise mekes it difficult to grule or to announce any

type of decision counsel could easily follow g0, consequently, the

Court is reluctan:t to make such a decision, But, the Court doces feei
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that. there is at least one area that it is confident in ruling upon,
that counsel can follow and adhere to, and that is -- actually,
probably two areas. The first being the question of any statements
made by the juvenile, who is obviously"pot and cannot be forced to
be a witness in this case because of his Fifth Amendment Right, that
no comment should be made on the fact that he has made a statement,
either exculpatory or inculpatory or the nature of evidence in that
regard because to do so would bring those matters into this trial
which are not, in this Court's opinion, material and not really
competent evidence for presentment in this trial. That is number one
T think that is something counsel can steer clear of. That is fairly

clear. Number two, the fact of these, whatever they may be, and this

Court really doesn't know exactly what the charges are that have bee?
filed against the Juvehile in Juvenile Court, and an examination int$
what those specific charges are, is, according to the case law sub-
mitted to the Court by the Prosecution, quite likely not relevant to
this inquiry and, consequently, not admissible evidence. Even if it
would be relevant, it may be, under Rule 403, of such a nature as to
be too confusing for the jury to handle and properly excludable by
the trial court anyway. That is not %o suggest -- those two rulings
by the Court are not to suggest, howesver, that Michael Johnson's
involvement and evidence of his involvement in the case is in any
way precluded or foreclosed from ingquiry by counsel. If the ruling

of the Court in this regard is a little unclear, it is because

nothing has been offered, no questions asked, and no statement made
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against which the Court can rule, based on the rule ofrevidence this
morning. 1Is counsel satisfied there is adequate guidelines for

counsel to follow?

MR. HEAD: We believe s0.
MR. BOSTICK: Yes, sir.

MR.‘HEAD:> We would move that Detective Mullins be
designated as éhe Stafe's representative.

MR. BOSTICK: We object. I have been looking for years,
and I have founé.no Sasis for such a designation. Detective Mullins
is a nice fellow. We became acquainted on the bus ride, but we feel
that he should not be allowed to so sit.

THE COURT: Is Detective Mullins anticipated to be your

Ffirst witness?

MR. HEAD: -No, Your Honor.

MR. LANGER: No.

MR. BOSTICK: He will be called to testify, Your Honor,
by the State, who joined with Defense for a separation of witnesses.

That is the basis of our okbjecticn.

MR. LANGER: I might represent +o the Court that the
State’'s case is-extréﬁely complex and while Mr. Head and I are con-
fident we have a full grasp of all the facts of the case, Detective
Mullins beyond question knows the c#se better than he.or I knows

it, and he is a necessary aid to us to fully, adequately prosecute

this case.

MR. BOSTICK: We would take the same stand with respect |
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to any number of witnesses: namely, the young Deféndant's father. H¢
would aid the Defense. -

MR. LANGER: T will add this. One of fhe things Detecti
Mullins testifiés to is the statement of the Defendant. Of course,
under the corpus delicti rule, we couldn't introduce the Defendant's
statement as the first item of evidence in the trial.

THE COURT: The Court only knowing that the witness list
that was read éévthe‘jury is quite extensive can extrapolate from

that to get to the point to say the case is probably at least admin-

istratively complicated and z0 as to require some assistance in that

regard. However, the Court 1is sympathetic with the motion insofar as

any sensitive part of the detective's testimony would be concerned
as it relates to perhaps the testimony of other witnesses, So, the
éourt is going to ovefrule the mption at this time, but the Court
will allow counsel to raise the objection again at times in which it
thinks that the separation order would be particularly relevant
vig-a-vis the detective’s testimony. The Court has no idea what the
testimony of the detective would be and how it would overlap or in
other ways coincide with the testimony of other witnesses. I am |
assuming with most of the lay witnesses, testimony of the detective
wouldn't have much bearing on that one way or the other. It might
in some other aspects. In instances, if eounsel can raise specific

objections and specific reasons for the separation of the witness,

at that point the Court will entertain that.

w

MR. HEAD: To clear the record, the State had moved for:
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Detective Mullins as our representative, which was objected to. You
overruled the motion?

THE COURT; I sustained the motion and.overrule the
objection.

MR. BOSTICK: - We would then move that Detective Mullins
be reguirsd to iestiff, if at all, following the testimony of the
Coroner.

MR, LANGER: I object to that. I think the Prosecutor
has a right to Eonstrﬁct its case in the manner it considers most
effective. In our judgment, Detective Mullins' testimony would be
not as effectively understood by the jury so early on in the State's
case., There are a lot of predicates that have to be laid before he
tegtifies. I object to that.

THE COURT:A-That motion is overruled.

MR.-STEPHAN: One last motion. Defense would move to
strike the abduction count for lack of particularity. Specifically,
no identity is given to the alleged corpse. We would move to strike
on the basis of that.

THE COURT: No what?

MR; STEPHAN: No identity is given to the alleged corpss
in the indictment, dn the basis of lack of identity for that ccrpse;
recognizing that corpse is then and there not a human living being,

put for the lack of specificity and particularity in that particular

count, we would move to have it stricken.

|

THE COURT: You ars talking sbout the abuse count or the:
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- you were to have some preliminary instructions o follow while you

kidnapping?

MR. STEPHAN: The abuse of corpse, in the orig;nal
indictment priér to tﬁe amandment.

_THE COURT: Well, the Court~will overrulebthe motion. If
£eels adequate ;hat the indictment read as a whole gives adequate
notice to the Defendant of the nature and quality of the charge, and
the required specificiﬁy under the Code is present. Overruled.

{wvhereupon court reconvened.)

THELCOURT; Good morning, ladies and gentlemen. Ladies

and gentlemen, éefore we hear the opening statements éf counsel and

begin to take evidence in #his case, I think it might be helpful if

are listening to and considering +he aevidence that you will hear.
ILater, after you hear éll of the ev;dence and the closing arguments
of counsel, I will give you further instructions covering additional
law which you are to follow in this case.

Az I have instructed you before, it is the duty of the Judge
to instruct you in the law and it is your duty to follew the law
both as I state it to you now and at +he conclusion of all of the
evidence. First of all, it is your exclusive duty to decide all
the questions of fact that are submitted to you. In connection with|
this duty, you must determine +he effect and the value of the evi-
dence presented., You must not be influenced in your decision by
éympathy, prejudice, or passieon toward any pafty, witnesses, or

attorney in this case.
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T am giving you some of these instructions now and some I will give

1£, in these instructions, or in the instructions that I give
you at the conciusion of the evidence, any principle is repeated or
stated in scme varying way, I want to assure you that no emphasis is
intended thereon and none must be inferred by you. Therefore, don't
single out any particular sentence or individual point of law or
instruction that I give you and ignore the athers; You are, rather,
to consider aii of my instructions as a whole and consider each

instruction in relation to the others that I give you. The fact that

la

you at the conclusion of the evidence has no significance as to thei
relative importance.

The attorneys for the partiles will have active roles in the
trial of this éaseg They will make opening statements to you, they
will question the witnésses, and they will make cbjections. Finallyl,
they will argue the case as the last step before you hear my final
instructions and commence your deliberations. Remember that the
attorneys are not witnesses, and sincé it is your duty to_decide
this case solely on the sevidence which you see or hear from the
witness stand, vou must not consider as evidence any statement of |
any attorney made during she ¢rial. There is an exception to this
and, that is, if the attorneys agree on any particular £act, such
agreement or admiszicn may be brought to your attention, and it will
then be your duty, upon the Court's telling you so, to regard that

fact as having been conclusively proved without the necessity of

any further evidencs on that point. If a guestion is asked and an
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objection to the question is sustained, you will not hear the answer
to»that guestion and you must not speculate as to what that answer
might have been or the reaéon for that objection. 'Tf an answer is
given to a question and the Court then grants a motion to strike ocut
the answer, you are to simply disregard both the question and the
answer and not consider them for any purpose. . Remember, a question
in and of itself is not evidence. It may be considered by you only
as it applies some meaning to the answer by way of testimony from

the witness.

W

¥ have told you already the distinction between direct evidence
and circumstanfial evidence and I will not further instruct you on
those points at this time.

As jurors; you have the sole and sxclusive duty to decide the
credibility of'éhe withesseS‘who will testify in this case. This
simply means ihat it is you who must decide whether to believe or
disbelieve a particular witness and how much weight, if any, to give
to the testimony of each witness. 1In determining these questions,
you should apply the tests of truthfulness‘which you apply in your
daily lives. These tests include the appearance of each witness on
the witness stand; the witness' manner of testifying:; the reasonabler
ness of the witness' testimony; the opportunity that the witness had
to see, hear, and know the things concerning which he testifies; the
witness' accuracy of memory: his frankness or lack of it: his intel-

ligence; interest; and bias, if any; together with all the facts and

circumstances which surround the witness' testimony. Applying these
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tests, you will assign to the testimony of each witness such weight
as you deem proper. You are not required to believe the testimony
of any witness simply because it was given under oath. You may
believe or disbelieve all or any part of the testimony of any witness.
You should not decide any issue of fact merely on the basis of the
number of witnesses who testify on each side of an issue., Rather,
the final test in judging the evidence should be on the force and
weight of the evidence regardless of the number of witnesses on each
side. The testimony of one witness which is believed by you is
sufficient to prove any fact. You are certainly aware of tﬁe fact
that two persons who are witnesses to an incident may often see or
hear it differently. 1In considering discrepancies in a witness'
testimony, you may comnsider whether such discrepancy concerns an
important factor br a fnivial one and whether the discrepancies are
of such a nature as to cause you to disbelieve all or part of the
testimony of that witness., If you conclude that a witness has will-
fully lied in his testimony as to a material fact, you may certainly

then distrust all of that witness' testimony and would have the

1]

right to reject that testimony unless, from all of the other evidenc

you believe that the probability of truth favors the witness'

testimony in other particulars.

This concludes my preliminary instructions of law to you, and
I hope that will be of some assistance while you are listening to
and considering the evidence in this case. At this point in time,

counsel for the parties are going to give you opening statements,
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Again, I would remind you that the opening statements of counsel as

well as the closing arguments are not evidence. Opening statements

are designed to assisé you by presenting to you an.ouﬁline, if you
will, or a table of contents of what the attorneys for the parties
believe that the evidence will show in the case.

with that instruction, then, opening statement, Mr. Langer?

*° % ®
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MR. LANGER: Thank you, Your Honor. May it please the
Court. Mr. Head. Mr. Bostick. Mr. Staphen. Ladies and Gentlemen
of the Jury. Good morning. My name, oOnce again, is Dennis Langer.
I am an Assistant'Montgomery County Prosecuting Attorney and I,
along with Bob Head, will be prosecuting this case. I might also
introduce at the prosecutor's table Bill Mullins, Detective Bill
Mullins, who is the detective from Moraine who has been on this case
since the very beginning.

As you know, the Montgomery County Grand Jury has returned an
indictment against this Defendant, Keith Wampler, and it charges him
with having committed four crimes against 13 year old David Rowell.
First, that he abducted that boy, restrained him by force or threat
of force. Second, he raped him, anally raped him. Third, he murdered
him by strangulation.  And, fourth, he abused the corpse by cutting
off his genitals. These are the crimes for which this Defendant has
been charged, and now in the course of this trial Bob Head and I
will present evidence which will convince you be?ond'any reasonable
doubt that this Defendant ié guilty of those crimes.

An opening statement, as Judge Kessler has mentioned, gives us
the opportunity to sort of clue you in on how we are going to go about
proving this Defendant's guilt beyond any reasonable doubt. I
suppose 1f there were one initial point I might make about the State's
case, I think Bob has sort of already forewarned you, the State's case

is not a simple case. It is quite the contrary. It is rather

complex. Bob has told you, and he meant it, this is not a case that '
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is going to be handed to you on a silver platter. There are going
tQ'be many, many details that you are going to hear during the course
of our case. A lot of the details at the time you hear them from the
witnesses will, at the time, seem toO be minor or perhaps insignifican
yet leter»oh; as you get further into the case and as you get into
deliberétion, those minor details will turn out to be rather crucial
details in deciding this Defendant's guilt. That is the sort of case
that you are going to be receiving in this courtroom,_and you are
going to have to be I gueés‘human sponges, takihg in every bit of
the testimony, every bit of the evidence you hear in the courtroom
in order to make a fair and an accurate decision in this case.

Let me sort of give you, as Judge Kessler ascribed, a broad
outline of the State's case. I certainly cannot get into all the
details, but I sort of want to give yod a broad description of the

State's case.

The evidence will, of course, relate to a central figure, David
Rowell. David Rowell's formal name was Robert David Rowell. He
was.1l3 years old, a seventh grade student at Van Buren Junior High.
David was the son of Myrtle and Bobby Rowell. They lived in that
house on Kreitzer that you were shown. He lived there with his
parents and his brother, his 15 year old brother Michael Rowell, and
10 year old sister Krista. If there is one physical feature that
anyone who. knew David Rowell would immediately describe, the first

thing that comes to-their mind would be his size. The evidence will

be that David Rowell weighed 65 pounds. He was four and a half feet
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tall. If he were standing in this courtroom right now in front of
me, he would come up to here (indicating) about on the fronE of me.
He wore size 3D shoes. On the day of his death, he was 13 years old,
but he looked nine years old; and perhaps because of his smallness
in comparison to other boys his age bavid compensated, I suppose, by
sometimes perhaps talking too much, talking bigger than he was, and
that was one of the characteristics of David that this Defendant --
that annoyed this Defendant. He considered the Defendant (sic) a
pest. That is going to be.the evidénce, and.quite simply he didn't
like David Rowell.

Now, this Defendant on the date in question was 16 years old,
and he lived in that trailer on Cozy Lane that you were taken into.
Despite the appearance of it yesterday, he lived in that trailer
alone with his father. His parents had.been divorced for some time;

and this Defendant, in comparison to the victim, was a much larger

individual.

On Friday, February 5, the evidence will indicate fhat that was
a cold day, a frigid day. The temperature as the evening developed
dropped down into the single digits, and it snowed during that part
of the day. It snowed until apout 10:00 o'clock. By the way, that
is one of those minor details which will be important, the time that
it stopped snowing, one of the factors that you will have to consider
in determining the time of death which the coroner estimated at

approximately 1:00 A.M. saturday Morning, February 6. But, we are

getting a little bit ahead of ourselves.
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Friday, February 5, 4:30 or about 5:00 o'clock P.M., Michael
Rowell, the brother of David, walks over to the Defendant's trailer.
This Defendant was a friend of Michael but was no friend of David.
Michael walks over to the Defendant's trailer, and the Defendant is
home alone and, in fact, his father is in Waynesville, Ohio, and 1s
there that entire night. He never comes back until the next day.

He leaves his son there alone. Michael Rowell and this Defendant
watch TV and they also have a couple diinks, Vodka and.grapefpuit juife.
About a half hour later, little Davia comes knocking at the door,
looking for his brother. He comes into the trailer. Sits on the
couch there in the living room, and it is there in the living room
area that this Defendant and Michael Rowell get into a wrestling
match and the Defendant gets a little bit rough and strikes a low
blow to Mike. Mike, naturally, is upset and he leaves the trailer;
runs from the tréiler in anger, and he runs to a frignd's trailér,
a friend by the name of Lisa Collins. Then you have sort of a bizarre
scene. The Defendant runs after Michael without é shirt on. This
is freezing weather. He 1is seen running after or running from the
trailer without a shirt on. The last time that Michael Rowell sees
his brother alive is when he saw David sitting there on the couch
inside the trailer of the Defendant. Buﬁ, David didn't remain there.
After his brother had run out of the trailer and the Defendant ran
éfter him without a shirt on, David walks to the Shipmans' trailer.
That was the plack and white trailer on the othér side of Cozy Lane

that you were shown. In that trailer lived Mr. and Mrs. Shipman and
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their sons, James Shipman, 15 years old, and little Joey Shipman,
eight years old. David walks over there and has a brief conversation
with Joey and Jim Shipman. He gets a cigarette from Jim. The very
last person other than the Defendant, the very last person to see
little David alive is little Joey Shipman. He will testify that he

saw David walk back to the trailer of the Defendant.

We move up to 7:00 o'clock. Michael Rowell returns home, and

Mr. and Mrs. Shipman (sic) are naturally concerned that David isn't with

him. Then begins the night long search for David. . That family looks

everywhere for David. Every conceivable place they think he might be

in that area thev check out. They check all around the trailer park.
They go over to the Moraine Civic Center, which you saw. On that nigh
there was a movie, Benji. They play movies for free for kids in that

area. He wasn't there. Mr. Rowell_goeé all the way up to the Dayton
Mall on the off chance somehow Mike (sic) might have gone to the
Dayton Mall. He's not up there. One of the places checked by Mike
Rowell is the Defendant's trailer, and he éoes back to the trailer at
about 7:30 or so and asks Keith if he had seen the Defendant (sic) --
had seen David, and the Defendant lied. He said the last time he
saw him he was over on the Shipmans' patio.

The evening wore on and eventually the Rowells called the police
and filed a missing person's report with the description, and the

police join in on the search, looking for a boy of that description.

They can't find him that evening.

Nine o'clock, these are approximate times, 9:00 o'clock 15 year

1t
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0ld Jim Shipman and Joey, tagging along with his older brother, and
17 year old Ted Ritchie, and another teenager by the name df Mike
Johnsdn, 14 years old, show up at the Defendant's trailer, and they
are admitted intb the trailer by the Defendant, and all of them
except for little Joey have beer.

Jim Shipman, Joey's brother, has by that time had a little bit
too»much to drink} and he goes back into the middle bedroom, which
YOu saw yesterday, the Defendant's bedroom, and lies down for 30 or
40 minutes. |

All of those boys are in that trailer, and néne oé them see into
the back bedroom, the father's bedroom, The aobr to that bedroom was
closed that entire time. None see or hear David inside that trailer,
but none of them see the entire trailer. They all leave about 11:00
o'clock. | |

We shift té the next day, Satufday, February 6. Mr. Rowell is
continuing his search for his son. About 3:00 ofclock or 3:30 in
the afternoon —-— I am not gquite sure of the time -- Mr. Rowell is now
searching in that field you yourself walked into yesterday, when he

happens upon a sight that will haunt him for the rest 6f hig life.

He discovers the nude, naked body of his young son lying in a thorn

push. He called the police. The police come to the scene and, of

course, quarter off the area so any evidence that might be there will
not be tampered.with, They further look at the body, and on top of

the face of little David is a supermarket bag, and they open the bag

and find a gruesome sight. The genitals of the boy are inside the
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paper bag. |

The body is taken to the coroner's office. - The next déy, Sunday
not Saturday but:Sunday, about 9:00 o'clock in the morning the
coroner conductsAthe autopsy, Dr. Donald Shaffer. He will be our
first witness this afternoon. Dr. Donald Shaffer conducts the
autopsy, and he makes the following findings. He says pavid Rowell
died as a resqlt of strangulatioh, and he will show you the evidence
for that; at about 1:00 o'clock in the morning February 6, give or
take two hours either'way.- YOu may.have a misconception'that a
coroner can give an exact estimate of time of death, but unless there
is a witness obéerving it, it is an approximate science. He finds
evidence of a gag in David's mouth in the form of hemorrhages inside
or én the gums‘of the boy. He finds evidepce'of anal rape in the
form of, injuries to thé anus, fresh injﬁries to the anus. He dis-
covered bruises that were sustained pefore death about the head and
on the body of David. He discovers scratches which were sustained
after death. He examines the genitals and he examines the wound
where the genitals should have been, and he reaches the definite
conclusion that the genitals were amputated after death. He will
tell you why he can say that; and he also finds alcohol in the blood
stream of David Rowell. |

Now, a murder case isn't like any other sort of criminal case.
In any other sort of criminal case, the victim can testify. But,

not in a murder case. Therefore, it is in a circumstantial manner

that the truth has to be arrived at. I think that is abundantly
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clear to you by now.

MR. BOSTICK: We object, Your Honor. This is patently
argumentative and improper at this Ebne in opening.statement.

THE COURT: It is getting perhaps a bit argumentative.

We will overrule the objection on the basis that this may be a
predicaté to some other aspect of what the evidence will show.

MR. LANGER: Yes. What I am leading to is the circumstan-
tial evidencé in this case from which ybu will réagh_yoﬁr conclusion.
You are going to hear testimdny about a path.of footprinté. You are
going to hear testimony about a towel with blood on it out_iﬁ that

field, recovered out in the field; a toilet seat cover recovered in

the field; fibers recovered from the clothing of David. And his

clothing, by the way, was in a separate supermarket bag some feet
away from the body. Fibers found in thé shoe and on the clothing
of David. Trace evidence found on his body by the coroner. Blood
stains on the door of the Defendant's -- on that table. Remember
that table you saw inside just as you are looking out the door to the
left.of the table? Blood stains on that table, and a lot of other
evidence and testimony relating to this Defendant; and the
Defendant's own statement which, while he denies any involvement in
this, he makes a rather significant admiésion; You will hear that.
and all of this evidence together with your reason and common sense
will.lead you to.two conclusions. Number one, that the abduction,;
the fape, the murder, and the mutilation happened inside that

Defendant's trailer. There will be no guestion about that. Number
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two, beyond any reasonable doubt, you are going to conclude, based
on the evidence, that this Defendant is guilty of those crimes. And
after you hear all the_evidence, Bob Head and I are going to ask you
to return the verdict which the nation and law and justice require,
a verdict of guilty.

Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Langer. Opening statement,

Mr. Stephen?

MR. STEPHAN: Thank you, Your Honor. May it please .the
Court. Ladiés and Gentlemen of the Jury. Honorable Présecutors.
Detective Muilins. Mr. Bostick, and Keith Wampler. I pause. for a
moment because we have just heard a very grueéome story, one that
even in your wildest imagination you wouldn't want to contrive. But,
as the Judge has instructed you and as Mr. Langer has a%mitted, an
opening statement is simply our perception of what the evidence is
going to.show; and you know that when you see a fact or you hear
something or you observe something, it may be peréeiVedvdifferenﬁly
than from what gomeone else ﬁay hear, see, or perceive it to be. My

point is that in most situations in life there is going to be more

than one side to a story, and you have just heard one side of the

story. That is, the prosecution's side of the story. But, there is
another side to this story. That is, the Defendant's side to this
story.

Let me tell you a little bit about the Defendant. Charles Keith

Wampler is a 16 year old young man, and he lived in that trailer court

7
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and he knew  this boy that you are going to hear about during the
testimony, but he didn't know him that well and he didn't know these
other boys that well. He was friendly with some of them, but the

R

evidence is not going to show that he was that well acguainted with
them. |

I believe that the prosecution would like you to believe after
they have submittéd to ydu all their evidence that Keith Wampler
planned this out and calculated the strangulation and the murder and
the rape andnthe abduction of.this éoor youné boy, and they are

going to attempt to zero in with their evidence on Keith Wampler.

'But, Ladies and Gentlemen, let me ask vou to remember this.  They

havé a burden of proof, énd Keith Wampler wears a robhe of innocence,
and he wears that robe of innocence £hroughout the presentation of
their eviaence, no matter what it might be.

That’fobe of innocence-developea back in 0ld English Law. They
called it the King'é Robe. The reason they called it the King's
Robe was because of the power and authority and impoftance that a
king's robe meant. And he wears that robe. And so as you listen to
these sordid, gruesome and awful facts the prosecution is going to
put before you, don't look at Keith Wampler and say, well, he must

have done it.

MR. LANGER: I am sorry to interrupt, but I will have to

ohject.

THE COURT: If you could, confine the opening statement to

what you believe the evidence will show, Mr. Stephen.
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MR. STEPHAN: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MR. STEPHAN: As I stated, the evidence that tﬁe prosecutior
is going'to put before you is going to be gruesome and awful. No
guestion about i;. Mr. Lénger is going to show you a picture of this
young boy's:genitals that were cut off. He is going to show you a
picture. of what he looked like when he was found in the field. He
is going to show you evidence by photographs of anal rape. He is
going to show you bruises énd lacerations. fhat is all very, veryf
‘terrible. But, Keith Wampler wears that King's Robe, and donft
distort your function because you will tend to look at him and say,
how could he have done that? He wears that robe throuéhout the trial,

Mr. ianger got up here and talked to you about facts 6f the
caée} wWhat I'd like té do 1is épproach it as a who, whaﬁ, when, where
and why and how presentation.‘ There are certain things that are not
in dispute. Whén did this occu:? Well, this crime, this series of
crimes occurred sometimeé during the afternoon of February 5 ana '
through the evening and into the next day of February 6. Mf. Langer
is perfectly correct.

The best we can gi@e you are-app;oximate tiﬁes beéause we don't
know any more. That is not in dispute as to when it occurred. -The
evidence will establish that.

The evidence is also going to establish what occurred, and he

listed the crimes for you and I am not going to belabor that point.

We know what happened. They found this young boy's body, and we are
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able to tell what happened to him.

But, there are some things in dispute. Mr. Langer says the
evidence is going to show that this crime and this serieé of crimes
occurred in Keith Wampler's trailer. The evidence is not going to
show that. They are not going to be able to sustain their burden of
proof on that fact.

We go to the next question. Who did this awful thing? We know
who the accused is. The evidence is going to shoy'that‘Keith Wampler
has been arrested and chafged and indicted,'just as occurs in every
criminal case; and the result in him being the accused in this case
and the evidence is going to show that. But, the evidénce is not
goiﬁg to show that he committed these crimes. |

And, Ladies and Gentlemen, why, why did this happen? We don't
know why it happened because the evidence is going to show Keith
Wampler didn't do iti Aﬁd, Ladies and Gentlemen, the evidence is
going to show that they can't prove to you who did it. This is not
mere legal rhetoric that I am trying to get to you. He sits there.
with the King's Robé on, and they have to prove -- and that is the
cornerstone of this defense. This man is innocent. They have to
prove who did it, and they can't, and‘the evidence wili-bear that
out.

Let's talk about that time frame that Mr. Langer made reference
to. At about 4:00 to'4:30; the older Rowell boy went to Keith's

trailer. The evidence will show that. Either at the same time or

shortly thereafter, the younger boy, the victim, David, went to Keith
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Wampler's trailer. There is going to be some dispute, as the evidencse
will show, as to why the older boy left the trailer. Mr. Langer wants
you to believe that Keith Wampler delivered a low blow. I am not

sure what that means, but that is what he says the evidence is going
to show. 1In any event, the older Rowell boy left the trailer. Keith
went after him. -The evidence will show that he went after him to

find out why he was leaving. The evidence will further show, and you

ment that was given by Keith'Wampler,‘a statement voluntarily given
to Detective Mullins at the time of his arrest, the evidencg is going
to show from Keith's own mouth that the younger boy, the viétim, left
right after the brother. And there is proof of that. Mr. Langer
told you what the proof is. He went to Joey Shipman's house, right
across the driveway thét separates Keith's trailer from the black and
white trailer you sawAyesterday, the Shipmans' trailer. That is
whefe the boy waé last seen, and that is where the boy'was last seen
by. this Defendant.

* Now, how are we going to fill the gap between 5:30 Friday,
February 5, and late in the afternoon or sometime in the afternoon on
Saturday when poor Mr. Rowell findg his son's body in the field? We:
can fill the gap. The evidence is going to show from Kéith‘s own
statement that was given to Detective Mullins right at the time of
the arrest, I stayed home. I didn't go anyplaée. I went to bed.
These boys came over at 9:00 o'clock and we sat around and drank beer|;

these four other boys; the two Shipman boys, Michael Johnson and Ted
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Ritchie. They came over and had a little get togethef there. They
drank some beer. At 11:00 o'clock, those boys left. Keith went on
to bed. He got a portable television, took it in the vefy back room
of the trailer, set it up on a little shelf, ﬁurned.on the electric
blanket that hisifather slept with because it was a ferribly cold
night, and I'don't imagine those trailers heat up so well. So, he
took the TV and blanket and went to sleep in the back bedroom. . That
is where he was at 1:00 o'clock in the morning. We don't know where
David Rowell was, and tﬁéy can't tell you. |

Keith's statement is_goipg to be played for you here on a tape
recorder. That is part of the evidence. He is going to teil you what
he aid that night. He was asleep.

We can't ﬁell you,‘Ladies and Gentlemen, what happened to this
poor boy, the victim, they found in the field, but we can tell you
one thing. The evidence will show you Keith Wampler did hot commit
this series of crimes and that he stands upon his plea of nbt'guilty
today, as he has ever since the first moment the police made contact
with him. And the evidence will show they first saw him February 6,
probably within.minutes of after when the body was discovered. And
he told them then, I didn't do it. He told them Jaber when Ehey

arrested him, I didn't do it. Yet, they want you to believe at this

point, after they put this admittedly difficult case before you, that‘
you should find him guilty. But, he is still wearing the King's

Robe.

We are not before you today nor will we be before you for the
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balance of this trial to deny the strangulation and mutilation and
abuse of that body, that poor boy's body. That is not our purpose.
Our purpose is, though, to have you draw the distinction‘between the
actual crime itself; the tragedy, and who they have charged with it.
Keith Wampler didn't do this terrible crime. He is innocent df L& A
and there is no proof beyond a reasonabie doubt before you to change
your mind from that. The prosecutors are in a terrible predicament
because they don't have a lot of proof.:

MR. LANGER: Objéction, Your Honor. -

THE COURT: Sustained. If you could, confine your comments
to what you believe your evidence will show, please.

MR. STEPHAN: Ladies and Gentlemen, you will have a wealth
of information placed before you by the evidence, and there will be
many details,: as Mr. Langer pointed out, that will be crucial. We
would ask you to watch those details just as closely as he does
because those detéils are vety important.

The evidence is going to show you that the crime occurred, but
we submit that the evidence will not show you that Keith Wampler
commifted these crimes.

Let me conclude by saying this. At the end of thé triél, after
yvou have héard and received all of the evidence and after the Judge
has instructed you, we suggest to you that you are going to entertain
several reasonable doubts, and many of those reasonable doubts are

going to be conclusive doubts. And if at the close of the evidence

and the instructions of the Court, you have those conclusive doubts,




Opening Statement - Defense 284

Ladies and Gentlemen, you know what your cuty is, what your burden
is, and that is to return a verdict of not guilty. After you have
heard all the evidence and after you have heard £he instfuctions, we
believe in and we trust in the fairness and impartiality.that you all

exhibited during .voir dire, and we ask you to come in with a verdict

H

of not guilty.
Thank you. Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: .Thank you, Mr. Stephan. Ladies and Gentlemen,
as I indicated ‘yesterday I'think it was, dué.to other commitments that
the Court had made previous to scheduling this trial, we are going £o
adjourn now and will make this kind of an extended luncheon . .recess
for'you. What time did we say we were going to resume, 1:00 o'clock?

MR. HEAD: Around 1:00 or 1:15.

THE COURT: is 1:00 o'clock sufficient, counsel?

MR. BOSTICK: Fine.

THE COURT: If you could make arrangements to retufn and be
available in the jury room at 1:00 o'clock, we will try to commence

the ‘trial at 1:00 P.M. Case is adjourned.

* _ k kK %
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{whereupon the following was had in chambers:) !

(Whéreupon State’s Exhibits la through 1ii, 2a fhrough ;
21, and 3 throuéh 7 were marked for identification.) ;

THE COURT: The record should indicate that we are in

chambers, out of the presence of the jury, all parties and counsel

being present along with the State's witness, Dr. Schaffer from the

Montgomery County Coroner's Office for the purpose of reviewing
certain photographic slides intended»to be offered as Exhibits in
the case to allow counsel to object, if they wish to, and state
those opinions out of the presence of the jury and get rulings
thereon.

MR, LANGER: Exhibit la, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Exhibit la, any cobiection? ;

MR, STEPHAN: ¥No objection.

THE COURT: All right.
MR. LANGER: Exhibit 1b,

THE COURT: Any cbjs=ction?

h .lSTEPHAN: ¥No objesction.

TH? COURT: All right.

MR. LANGER: Exhibit lc.

THE COURT: Any objection?

MR. STEPHAN: No objection.

MR. LANGER: Exhibit 1d. ;

THE COURT: Any objection?
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MR, BOSTIGCK: Your Honor, we do object to



